
Nebraska State College System 

Food Service Operations RFP 09182023 

RFP Changes and Clarifications  

 

10/18/2023 

 

1) Page 12 Clarification:  20.  TECHNOLOGY REQUIREMENTS, second paragraph: 

 

“The Contractor shall provide the completed HECVAT (Higher Education Community Vendor 

Assessment Toolkit) – Lite version 3.0 or higher in the original Microsoft Excel format. The 

Contractor shall also provide their Information Security Policies.” 

Following is a link to the HECVAT Lite version mentioned in Section 20 page 12?   

https://library.educause.edu/resources/2020/4/higher-education-community-vendor-assessment-

toolkit 

 

2) Page 13 Change:  b. Network Requirements: 

 

Original RFP: 

b. Network Requirements, second paragraph: 

In addition, the Contractor will include an alternate cost proposal to provide their own network 

infrastructure. The College will provide space for racks as needed.  In this model it will be the 

responsibility of the Contractor to arrange internet access.  Communication cabling for the data 

network must be authorized by each College’s technology department and must meet the data 

cabling standards of each respective College.   Communication cabling is at the cost of the 

Contractor and will become the property of the College once installed. 

 

RFP Change: 

b. Network Requirements, second paragraph: 

In addition, the Contractor will include an alternate cost proposal to provide their own network 

infrastructure. The College will provide space for racks as needed.  In this model it will be the 

responsibility of the Contractor to arrange internet access.  Communication cabling for the data 

network must be authorized by each College’s technology department and must meet the data 

cabling standards of each respective College.   Communication cabling is at the cost of the 

Contractor and will become the property of the College once installed. The Contractor may 

request information related to network infrastructure so they fully understand the network 

requirements of each College, including internet service provider, equipment needs and 

network infrastructure management.  

https://library.educause.edu/resources/2020/4/higher-education-community-vendor-assessment-toolkit
https://library.educause.edu/resources/2020/4/higher-education-community-vendor-assessment-toolkit


11/1/2023 

1) RFP Change:  Page 17 - 23. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL:  

  

Original RFP language on page 17: 

All pricing information, excluding cash menu pricing, must be included within the College 

financial proposals and shall not be included in any part of the technical proposal. 

   

  RFP Changed language on page 17: 

All pricing information, excluding cash menu pricing, must be included within the College 

financial proposals and shall not be included in any part of the technical proposal. All 

pricing information, including a sampling of cash pricing, must be included within the 

College technical proposal and shall not be included in any part of the financial proposal. 

 

2) RFP Correction: Page 25 - CSCFood Service Calendar Correction: 

CSC noticed that the table for their Food Service Calendar in their appendix has an error.  

The original table and the table with corrections highlighted follow: 

 

Fall 2023 Spring 2024 

August 19-31 (August 21, Fall 

term begins) 

13 days January 7-31 (January 8, 

Spring term begins) 

24 days 

September 1; 5-30 (Sept. 2-4, 

Labor Day) 

27 days February 1-28 28 days 

October 1-13;18-31 (Oct 14-

17, Midterm break) 

27 days March 1; 11-29 (March 2-

10, Midterm break and 

March 30-April 1, Spring 

break) 

20 days 

November 1-21; 27-30 

(November 22-26, Fall break) 

25 days April 2-30 29 days 

December 1-15 (Dec 15, End 

of Term) 

15 days May 1-3 (May 3, End of 

Term) 

5 days 

Total 107 

days 

Total 106 

days 

 

Fall 2023 Spring 2024 

August 19-31 (August 21, Fall 

term begins) 

13 days January 7-31 (January 8, 

Spring term begins) 

25 days 

September 1; 5-30 (Sept. 2-4, 

Labor Day) 

27 days February 1-28 28 days 

October 1-13;18-31 (Oct 14-

17, Midterm break) 

27 days March 1; 11-29 (March 2-

10, Midterm break and 

March 30-April 1, Spring 

break) 

20 days 



November 1-21; 27-30 

(November 22-26, Fall break) 

25 days April 2-30 29 days 

December 1-15 (Dec 15, End 

of Term) 

15 days May 1-3 (May 3, End of 

Term) 

3 days 

Total 107 

days 

Total 105 

days 

 

 The following are clarification questions and answers and not changes to the RFP: 

 

Q1:  There is a comment on page 3 of the RFP about food options related to ‘religious 

requirements.’ Can you please elaborate on the requirements by college location? 

A1:  This comment was not college specific, instead relates to the growing requests for 

food alternatives because of religion.   We have had requests for non-pork items, fish on 

Friday, vegetarian diet, and religion related requests. Offering variety often addresses 

these concerns and that is what we are looking for. 

 

Q2:  Page 3 of the RFP references ‘minimum annual guarantees.’ Can you please share 

the current annual minimum guarantees in place for the current school year (23-24)? 

A2:  We are looking for the Contractors to identify minimum returns to the colleges.  The 

response could be a minimum plus a percentage of total revenues above the minimum, 

could be a percentage of overall revenues, or however the contractor chooses to structure 

the financial returns to the school. 

 

Q3:  Also, are there any capital investments, made by vendors per campus, that are 

unamortized? 

A3:  There are no unamortized investments from current Contractors. 

 

Q4:  Page 6, what is meant by ’evidence of authority’ for the signatory?  What needs to 

be provided to bind the firm’s proposal? 

A4:  The RFP reads:  “The person signing the proposal must show title and/or evidence of 

authority to bind the firm in contract.”  If the person signing is from 

ownership/management of the firm as identified by the title, that is all that is needed.  If 

the signer is not ownership/management, than a letter from ownership/management 

should be provided along with the proposal binding the firm to the proposal. 

 

Q5: Page 6, ‘Food Service Consultant’: Will NSCS be utilizing a consultant?  Has a 

consultant been identified? 

A5:  We will not know if we need a consultant until we see the proposals.  No consultant 

has been identified. 

 

Q6:  Page 7, ‘Transition Plan’: Can we get a list of equipment and small wares currently 

owned by the incumbent, by campus location?  

A6: The answers are found in the college Vendor Q&A.  

 

Q7:  Page 7, ‘Transition Plan’: Is it a requirement to purchase the previous contractor’s 

food inventories?  



A7: We are asking the vendors to develop a transition plan and identify what they can and 

will do relative to food inventories.  If the plan includes the purchase of food inventories, 

any payment must be made to the previous Contractor within 30 days after assumption of 

food service operations.  

 

Q8: Can capital investments and/or other investments be amortized over the period of 

nine (9) years? (initial terms, plus additional renewal options). 

A8:  Each proposed investment will be agreed upon by the Contractor and the College as 

well as the amortization for the investment.  The amortization period could be up to nine 

years.  The vendor may propose investments and amortize them up to nine years.  

 

Q9:  Who is responsible for emptying trash in the dining hall seating area? 

A9:  We attempted to address this in Appendix E:” The Contractor is responsible for 

removal of trash, recycling and composting materials from food service areas to mutually 

agreed upon designated collection areas.”  This would include the dining hall seating 

area. 

 

Q10:  Page 15, ‘Technical Evaluation Criteria’ Will only one (1) proposer earn the 

maximum point value in each of the identified criteria?  Oris is possible for multiple 

proposers to earn the maximum point values in each respective category?  Same question 

for page 18, ‘Financial Evaluaiton Criteria’. 

A10:  There will be multiple evaluators and the scores will have to be averaged, so it is 

possible that more than one vendor could get the maximum number of points in the 

Technical or Financial Evaluation Criteria.  

 

Q11:  Page 16, ‘Financial Proposal’:  For the financial pro forma, how many years of 

projections are to be included?   

A11:  The vendor is welcome to provide estimates for more than one year and that may 

be helpful to evaluation of the proposal, but the requirement is only one year.  

 

 

Q12: What are the estimated annual costs to the contractor for the following expenses, 

liquor license? 

A12:  A liquor license is not required for the private events held by the colleges, but all 

Nebraska laws must be followed regarding the serving of liquor.  If there were a catering 

event open to the public where alcohol is being served but not sold, it is recommended 

that the vendor have a catering license from the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission, 

then the caterer/food service provider would submit the event-specific Special Designated 

License (“SDL”) to the Commission and local municipality where the event is located at 

least two weeks prior to each event.  

 

Q13:  Are there any unamortized capital funds that will be remaining at any of the 

institutions that we need to be aware of and should account for in our proposals? 

A13:  There are no unamortized investments from current Contractors. 

 



Q14:  Can the menus for retail, catering, resident dining, and concessions be included on 

the flash drive and not printed in the proposal?  Or do we have to print the menus in the 

proposal as well? 

A14:  We are only requesting two hard copies (1) an original, and (2) a copy.  We want 

the printed copies to include everything that is in the pdf. 

 

Q15:  Would it be acceptable to have a page in the proposal referring you to the electronic 

flash drive where we will have all the HECVAT information? 

A15: We are only requesting two hard copies (1) an original, and (2) a copy.  We want the 

printed copies to include everything that is in the pdf. 

 

Q16:  Regarding the HECVAT lite response, do you want us to PDF the “HECVAT – Lite 

/ Vendor Response” tab into the proposal, and include the full excel document on the 

flash drive for submission? 

A16: We are only requesting two hard copies (1) an original, and (2) a copy.  We want the 

printed copies to include everything that is in the pdf. 

 

Q17: Can catering sample menus included in the technical proposal have sample pricing 

on them?  Or does this need to be removed? 

A17:  Yes, we have clarified that pricing information, including a sampling of cash pricing, 

should be included in the technical proposal and that would include catering menu pricing. 

 

Q18:  For Capital Investment, would the colleges prefer capital investment inside or 

outside the daily rate?   

A18:  The Colleges would prefer that any capital investment be identified as an expense 

and amortized outside the daily rate. 

 

Q19:  Section 24 – Financial Evaluation Criteria – Section e. requests a sample monthly 

operating statement, to include: 

• Demonstrate reasonable profit 

• Reasonable rates for labor 

• Reasonable food and direct costs 

Can we provide a sample monthly statement from a comparable campus and then use the 

proforma from each location to show profit, labor rates, food and direct costs?  Would 

this path meet your ask? 

A19:  Yes, this approach would meet our needs.  We are trying to assess the level of detail 

that could be provided on a monthly basis.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


